Public Document Pack

Nottingham City Council
Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee
Date:

Tuesday, 12 July 2022

Time:

10.00 am

Place:

Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, NG2 3NG

Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following
business

Director for Legal and Governance
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley

Direct Dial: 0115 8764302

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interests

3

Minutes
Last meeting held on 14 June 2022 (for confirmation)

4

Supply of diesel and associated lubricants - key decision
Report of Corporate Director of Resident Services

11 - 20

5

Supply and delivery of frozen food, grocery and fresh meat - key
decision
Report of Corporate Director of Resident Services

21 - 24

6

Commissioning of substance misuse treatment and recovery
services for Nottingham - key decision
Joint report of Corporate Director for People and Director of Public
Health

25 - 38

3 - 10

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting
Citizens attending meetings are asked to arrive at least 15 minutes before the time above
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 3

Nottingham City Council
Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee
Minutes of the meeting held at Loxley House, Station Street, NG2 3NG, on 14
June 2022 from 10.00 am - 10.50 am
Membership
Present
Councillor Cheryl Barnard (Vice Chair)
Councillor Adele Williams (Chair)
Councillor Sally Longford
Councillor Toby Neal
Councillor Linda Woodings

(for minute 15 only)

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:
Mark Leavesley
Rachael Morris
Steve Oakley
Syd Shaw
Antony Snape
Ceri Walters

-

Governance Officer
HR Business Lead (People)
Head of Contracting and Procurement
Traffic Control Centre Operations manager
Team Leader, Revenues and Benefits Business Support
Head of Commercial Finance

Call-in
Unless stated otherwise, all decisions are subject to call-in. The last date for call-in is
22 June 2022. Decisions cannot be implemented until the working day after this date.
Apologies for absence

9
None.

Declarations of interests

10
None.
11

Minutes

The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 10 May 2022 as a correct
record and they were signed by the Chair.
12

Traffic Control Centre communications procurement - key decision

Syd Shaw, Traffic Control Centre Operations Manager, presented the report, and
stated the following:


the Traffic Control Centre (TCC) utilises approximately 500+ telephone lines,
including broadband services, to monitor and control approximately 700 sets of
traffic signals throughout Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire County;

Page 3
1

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22



TCC also operates 300 CCTV cameras using the broadband services to monitor
the highway network, and many of the lines and broadband servicers share both
CCTV and traffic signals to minimise costs;



BT is the current provider of the service, with the current arrangement due to end
imminently and to ensure a continuation of service an exemption has been
agreed until October 2022 whilst a procurement process is completed. Carrying
out a procurement process will ensure that best value is sought;



a change of communication suppliers would entail re-programming over 500
broadband routers, involving both Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire
County Council staff time, contractors time to re-program in-station equipment,
system downtime, and an estimated cost in the region of £45,000 to implement;



in addition to the requirement of TCC, NCC hold a small number of broadband
contracts with different values, contract end dates and providers and it is
proposed that the new contract would incorporate small IT contracts held by NCC
as and when they are due to be contracted.

In response to a question, it was stated that social value considerations would form
part of the tender process.
Resolved
(1)

to approve authority to conduct a procurement process for the provision
of broadband and associated telephony services for a period of five years
at a cost of up to £1,500,000;

(2)

to delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Growth and City
Development to award a contract to the successful provider on
completion of the procurement process.

Reasons for recommendations
(1)

The Council needs to enter into a compliant contract which offers best value for
the Council and maintains the current operational levels of the TCC.

(2)

The products, services and facilities that our existing arrangement with BT
provides is a perfect match with our requirements and has been since the
arrangement started in 2014. Ideally, we would want to see the services
continue if they offer best value to the Council.

Other options considered
(1)

It was explored with both the Procurement Team and IT to see if there was the
possibility to amalgamate the TCC communication services within the existing
communications contracts and frameworks that NCC already has in place. It
was agreed with all parties that due to the level of TCC spend and the number
of lines that TCC has, that there were no existing contracts that could be used
to absorb the TCC services.

(2)

Doing nothing is not an option as there would be a breach of regulations.
Page 4
2

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22

13

Contract for the production, printing and despatch of Council Tax
billing, reminder notices, Benefit statements and associated documents
- key decision

Antony Snape, Team Leader, Revenues and Benefits Business Support, presented
the report, and stated the following:


the Revenues and Benefits service issues 230,000 Council Tax bills, 80,000 ebills, 250,000 Benefit Statements and 85,000 Council Tax reminder notices over
the course of a year;



the current contract expires on 31 July 2022 and the report seeks authority to
undertake a procurement exercise for a new four-year contract (on a 2+1+1
year basis) at a cost of up to £900,000 total over the 4 years;



a supplier was required that can despatch the volume at both annual billing time
and several times each week throughout the year, and ca also meet critical
deadlines.

Members stated that consideration should be given to marketing of e-billing,
highlighting the benefits from a sustainability and financial perspective.
Resolved
(1)

to approve the undertaking of a procurement process for a new four-year
contract (on a 2+1+1 year basis) up to a total cost of £900,000, to
commence 1 August 2022;

(2)

to delegate authority to the Corporate Director for Finance and Resources
to award the contract to the preferred supplier following completion of the
tender process.

Reasons for recommendations
(1)

The current four-year contract, which has operated on a 2 +1+1 basis since
2018, will expire on 31/07/22 and in order to comply with the City Council’s
contract procedure rules it is necessary to undertake another procurement
exercise to award a replacement contract. It is anticipated that procurement
may be made through a G-Cloud framework.

(2)

The 2+1+1-year contract arrangement allows the City Council to plan the cost
over this period while retaining the flexibility to break after two years if
circumstances require this.

Other options considered
(1)

To bring the production of bills and statements in-house. This option has been
rejected due to the complexity of the sorting and matching processes and
resources and machinery do not exist to handle these volumes.

14

Procurement of a Managed Service Provider for the Supply of Agency
Workers - key decision
Page 5
3

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22

Rachael Morris, HR Business Lead (People), presented the report and stated the
following:


The council has been in a contract with a managed service provider for number
of years in order to support the appropriate compliance and governance of
agency spend and in order to source the appropriate periphery resource to
bolster the core workforce in some of the council’s key services to ensure their
delivery is maintained and sustainable.



The council has been using Executive agencies and niche agencies for the
engagement of senior interim workers and those requiring specialist skills, at an
additional cost to the organisation over and above the managed service
provider.



The current managed service provider is not able to source agencies at this
level of skill or expertise due to the contractual implications NCC previously put
in place in the original tender.



The council was in a significantly different place in 2018 when the most recent
contract was awarded and it would be appropriate for us to increase the value
of the contract to cover off this spend, and bring it into one place.



The current contract expires in August 2022, and there is an option to extend for
a short period while we procure a new contract.



The contract would be for 5 years (on a 3+1+1 basis) at an approximate cost of
£6,000,000 per year (£30,000,000 total).

In response to a comment from members, Ms Morris stated that the use of agency
workers was only considered once HR and Heads of Service had discussed whether
there were other options available.
Resolved
(1)

to grant authority to procure a managed service provider for the supply of
agency workers for a period of 3+1+1 years with a value of up to
£6,000,000 per annum (£30,000,000 total value over the contract lifespan);

(2)

to delegate authority to the Corporate Director for Finance and Resources
to award the contract to the successful provider;

(3)

to grant authority to extend the current contract by up to three months
from August 2022, up to a value of £750,000, in order for the tendering
exercise to take place.

Reasons for recommendations
(1)

To approve a procurement process to commence in order for the council to gain
best value through the supply of agency workers for critical roles across the
council.

Page 6
4

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22

(2)

An extension to the existing contract allows appropriate resource and time to
procure the contract, with the current expiration due in August 2022. The
extension will be under the terms of the current ESPO framework.

Other options considered
(1)

Not renewing the contract and ceasing the usage of agency resource. This
option is not recommended from a compliance and financial perspective.
Agency resource should always be used as a last resort but there is always
likely to be need for agency cover in some of our high risk and statutory
services, and those services with recruitment & retention challenges. It is for
this reason that a corporate contract should be in place to manage and monitor
usage and spend across the organisation.

(2)

Due to the challenges with sourcing agency workers, the executive interim
market and the specialist skills set, we have recently had challenges through
the current managed service provider contract. We have explored procuring via
a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) but on the advice of procurement
colleagues this option was discounted on the basis that this would produce
challenges with governance and it would be unrealistic with current resources to
manage these contracts.

15

Procurement Strategy 2018-23 Year End Report

This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in.
Steve Oakley, Head of Contracting and Procurement, presented the report and
stated the following:


The Nottingham City Council Procurement Strategy 2018-2023 drives the use of
the Council’s spending power to drive the key strategic objectives of:
o
o
o



Citizens at the heart;
Securing economic, social and environmental benefits;
Commercial efficiency.

The report presents the outcomes and achievements delivered under the
Strategy in its fourth year 2021-22, (detailed in appendix 1) and over the four
years of the Strategy 2018-21 (detailed in appendix 2). During 2021-22,
procurement activity delivered:
o

367 contracts awarded - representing a total value of £128.8m;

o

£68.29m invested in the local economy – 53% of total contract value
awarded to City suppliers, of which £27.8m was awarded to local SMEs.
Over the four years of the Strategy 2018-2022, a total of £1.16bn has been
invested in the local economy – an average of 60.51% of total contract
value awarded to City suppliers;

o

54.55% of the total contract value awarded (£70.29m) retained within
Nottinghamshire; 74.52% within the East Midlands area overall (£96.02m);

Page 7
5

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22

o

105 environmental measures and benefits secured through contracts
awarded;

o

35 new entry level jobs and apprenticeships created;

o

Cashable savings of £0.515m per annum on recurring contracts –
representing 10.74% of total contract value (recurring contracts only);

o

Anticipated income generation of £1.375m from concession contracts
awarded and approximately £0.205m external income raised from
procurement and contracting activities;

o

70 contracts awarded subject to the 1% levy rebate. Actual levy income is
dependent on expenditure incurred during the lifetime of contracts and
based on expenditure on relevant contracts during 2022-23, the income
generated for employment and skills activity was £90,000.

Resolved
(1)

(2)

to note the outcomes delivered:
(a)

under the Nottingham City Council Procurement Strategy 2018-23 in
its fourth year (2021-22), as detailed in appendix 1;

(b)

during the four years of the Procurement Strategy 2018-22, as
detailed at appendix 2;

to note that the Nottingham City Council Procurement Plan was to be
refreshed during 2022-23 as part of the procurement transformation
programme, and the updated Plan would be reported to a future meeting
of this Committee once complete.

Reasons for recommendations
(1)

The Procurement Strategy 2018-23 provides a robust framework for the
procurement of all goods, works and services to drive the delivery of the
Council’s strategic priorities within a challenging financial context. It sets out
how procurement will use the Council’s spending power to pursue our key
objectives of citizens at the heart; securing economic, social and environmental
benefits; and commercial efficiency. Delivery of the Council’s strategic priorities
depends on the efficient, strategic use of our purchasing power, and the
Strategy promotes a commercial approach to support the Council in addressing
significant financial challenges now and in the longer term.

(2)

The Strategy drives the delivery of social value for the City by addressing
economic, social and environmental considerations at all stages of the
procurement cycle, through the framework of the Public Services (Social Value)
Act 2012. It sets out the key actions to be taken to maximise the economic,
social and environmental benefits to be secured through all our purchasing
activity.

(3)

Implementation of the Strategy during 2021-22 has continued the focus on the
core principles of:
Page 8
6

Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee - 14.06.22








Commercial efficiency – a commercial approach and securing best value
for money;
Citizens at the heart – providing great services that are right for all citizens
and customers;
Partnerships and collaboration – maximising opportunities for joint
working;
Governance, fairness and transparency – to ensure a level playing field
and legal compliance;
Ethical standards – promoting the well-being and protection of work forces
throughout the supply chain;
Innovation and improvement – developing our processes and working
innovatively to secure improved outcomes.

Other options considered
None as the report is for noting only.

Page 9
7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Agenda
4
Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee
– 12 Item
July 2022
Subject:

Supply of diesel and associated lubricants

Corporate Director:

Frank Jordon - Resident Services

Portfolio Holder:

Councillor Audra Wynter - Highways, Transport and Parks

Report author and
contact details:

Shane Staley, Fleet Manager, Fleet Services
01158765527
shane.staley@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Phil Gretton – Strategic Finance Business Partner
Naomi Vass – Team Leader, Contracts and Commercial Team
Holly Fisher, Lead Procurement Officer

Key Decision
Yes
No
Subject to call-in
Reasons:
Expenditure
Income
Savings of £750,000 or more
taking account of the overall impact of the decision
Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more
wards in the City
Type of expenditure:
Revenue
Capital

Yes

No

Revenue
Yes

Capital
No

Total value of the decision: £9.6m
Wards affected: Citywide
Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 01/07/2022
Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:
Clean and Connected Communities
Keeping Nottingham Working
Carbon Neutral by 2028
Safer Nottingham
Child-Friendly Nottingham
Healthy and Inclusive
Keeping Nottingham Moving
Improve the City Centre
Better Housing
Financial Stability
Serving People Well
Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):
Fleet Services currently use the ESPO framework, which is a ‘direct award’ process for the
provision of diesel and other lubricants. This contract is due to expire 30 August 2022 and we are
seeking approval for the Council to go out to ‘mini competition’ by using the Crown Commercial
Services (CCS) framework agreement and award a contract to one supplier to purchase fuels.
This report details the options available to the Council to ensure a compliant and cost effective
supply of automotive fuel and fuel oil to the Council.
This will be in line with Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations.
Despite the ongoing electrification of Nottingham City Council’s fleet, diesel is still essential for
running 49% of our fleet including refuse collection vehicles, sweepers and minibuses.
Exempt information: None
Page 11

Recommendations:
1 To approve going out to 'Mini Competition' and award a contract to one provider via the
Crown Commercial Services (CCS) framework agreement. The contract will be awarded for
an initial 2-year period with an option to extend it by 1+1 years.
2

To approve spend of £9,600,000 for fuel and lubricant supply for the NCC vehicle and plant
fleet.

3

To delegate authority to the Director of Neighbourhood Services to award the necessary
contract(s) to the chosen supplier under the new framework.

1.

Reasons for recommendations

1.1 To ensure the provision of the services which are compliant with UK Procurement
legislation and the Council’s procurement rules.
1.2 To enable the Council to access market competitive prices throughout the purchasing
period through the aggregated purchasing power of the awarding Framework.
1.3 To ensure commercial and financial risks to the Council are mitigated by the
Framework Terms and Conditions.
1.4 The framework lists approved suppliers chosen through a qualitative and pricing
competition which Nottingham City Council is permitted to access as a Contracting
Authority.
1.5 Continued use of frameworks means that the investigation into the most competitive
suppliers and price of fuel is undertaken on behalf of Nottingham Council.
2.

Background (including outcomes of consultation)

2.1 Nottingham City Council currently estimates spend circa £0.6m per quarter on the
supply of diesel and the associated lubricants. Diesel powered vehicles make up
approximately 49% of the Council’s fleet, the rest is made up of electric and hybrid
vehicles. Over time, the number of diesel powered vehicles will decrease as the
Council moves towards being more sustainable.
2.2 The incumbent provider, Certas, was originally accessed using the ESPO Liquid
Fuels framework (301_19) when the fleet was 70% diesel powered vehicles, this is
due to expire on the 30th August 2022.
2.3 Accessing a national framework like CCS would allow for a greater economy of scale
that the Council could not achieve by undertaking its own tender exercise.
2.4 Details, benefits and considerations of the CCS Framework is as follows:








No joining or membership fees;
Only a mini-competition can be undertaken only the relevant lot (107);
End date January 2025;
Terms and Conditions of the Framework would need to be adhered to;
Contract and call-off terms prepared;
CCS management fee is £0.0020 pence per litre;
The incumbent provider can be invited to participate in the mini-competition;

The named providers are:

Page 12

-

Certas Energy UK Limited
Crown Oil Limited
Harvest Energy Limited
LCC Group Limited
New Era Fuels Limited
Nicholl’s (Fuel Oils) Limited
Rix Petroleum
Standard Fuel Oils Limited
Watson Fuels
Web Oil Limited
Your NRG Ltd

2.5 The spend for 2021/22 on Diesel, Gas Oil and Adblue was:
Fuel Type
Diesel
Gas Oil
Adblue
Total

Spend Total

No of Litres

£1,600,072
£19,576
£12,096
£1,631,744

1,445,314
31,677
40,601
1,517,592

Average Pence
Per Litre
£1.107 (net)
£0.618 (net)
£0.298 (net)

2.6 The profile of spend for 2021/22 by service area and external customer was:
Service Area
Domestic Waste
Commercial Waste
Highways
Public Realm
Passenger Transport
Other
Rushcliffe
Total

Spend Total
£449,760
£219,214
£89,329
£314,942
£70,400
£74,912
£413,187
£1,631,744

No of Litres
416,977
204,081
84,729
296,404
64,996
68,855
381,550
1,517,592

Percentage Use
27.50%
13.45%
5.58%
19.53%
4.28%
4.53%
25.13%
100.00%

2.7 The spend for 2022/23 on Diesel and Adblue to date is (Gas Oil is no longer
used):
Period – 01/04/2022 to 31/05/2022
Fuel Type
Diesel
Adblue
Estimated Total*

Spend Total
£332,899
£3,104
£2,016,018

No of Litres
238,537
4,487
1,458,144

Average Pence
Per Litre
£1.396 (net)
£0.692 (net)

* Estimated Total based on average pence per litre for the first 2 months of
2022/23 financial year
2.8 The current price of Diesel with ESPO at the time of writing this report W/C
20th June 2022 was £1.614 (net) per litre, which is £2.31m per annum
estimated spend.
2.9 The Council currently have the following main fuel tanks:
Eastcroft Depot

Page 13

Tank 1 Diesel – 28,000 litre Capacity
Tank 2 Hydraulic Oil – 2,000 litre Capacity
Tank 3 Diesel – 14,000 litre Capacity
Tank 4 Diesel – 10,000 litre Capacity
Tank 6 Adblue – 2,900 litre Capacity
Woolsthorpe Depot
Tank 1 Diesel – 10,000 litre Capacity
Tank 2 Diesel – 40,000 litre Capacity
Tank 3 Adblue – 2,300 litre Capacity
2.10 The proposed procurement strategy – Outline specification of the works,
goods or services being procured. The service required is summarised as
follows:
-

Conduct mini competition on behalf of the Council
Establish delivery site details and tank capabilities
Enable timely deliveries of liquid fuel and fuel oil to the Councils
designated delivery points
Produce and issue accurate invoicing based on actual delivery
volumes

2.11 Recommended procurement procedure:
-

Open Framework managed and procured by CCS
The framework provides fuel procurement to over 400 customers
with an annual throughput of circa £240m and delivers to in excess
of 6,000 sites, which will enable the Council to capitalise on the
economies of scale being represented.

2.12 The contract delivery methodology and documentation will adopt the terms
and conditions which will govern the service delivery as follows:
-

CCS Overarching framework terms and conditions
CCS Call Off order form including special NCC terms

2.13 Outcomes, savings and efficiencies expected as a consequence of awarding
the proposed contract.
-

Reduce Procurement timescales as framework has already been
compliantly procured in line with EU legislation
CCS to conduct the mini competition based on NCC requirements
On time deliveries of liquid fuel and fuel oil to the required locations
Scalable delivery volumes to match service requirements
Accurate billing
Weekly prices issued by CCS to ensure accurate budget forecast
CCS contract management; service levels and KPI performance
Comprehensive management information available from CCS
Utilise economies of scale to reduce or remove small load
premiums and reduce supplier margins

2.14 Criteria against which the tenderers are to be selected and contract is to be
awarded will be based solely on cost in accordance with the mandatory
criteria set by the Government Procurement Service.
Page 14

2.15 Options Appraisal
Set out below is an assessment of options:
Option 1 – Full Competitive Tender via FTS
The Council could choose to undertake a full competitive tendering process
via FTS for the provision of automotive fuel and oil. This has been discounted
for the following reasons:
-

A full competitive tender via FTS will take around 9 months to complete
meaning any new arrangements are unlikely to be in place before
August 2022 when the current contract ends.

-

Furthermore, the relatively low volumes of fuel and oil purchased by the
Council, when compared to the terms of the framework agreement,
means that any tendered prices may not reflect best value because
similar economies of scale may not be achieved.

-

A full competitive tender would increase the procurement costs without,
as noted above, providing best value for the Council.

Option 2 – CCS Framework Agreement (Recommended Option)
The CCS framework will seek to utilise wider economies of scale to enable
stronger negotiation points on elements of the full fuel cost such as small load
premiums and supplier margin. The framework allows for a scalable option in
terms of volume to be delivered to the agreed delivery points, this would
enable a flexible solution that would be able to accommodate and flex which is
a direct result of the CN28 transformation programme. This would mean that
the Council is not tightly bound by volume. The Framework will provide an
opportunity for the Council to run a mini-competition from a list of preapproved suppliers to determine the best value option in terms of cost and
supply arrangements.
Given the economies of scale obtainable from a Framework Agreement it is
expected that this option will deliver better prices when compared to option 1.
This option also provides best value in terms of procurement costs.
Option 3 – Fuel Cards
CCS has an open framework for the provision of Fuel Cards that the Council
could utilise going forward. The framework operates with a number of national
suppliers including well-known forecourt names such as BP & Shell. The
Council would be charged at pump prices per litre via the card transaction.
Each card will be required to be assigned to a vehicle to reduce the risk of
fraudulent purchases and would require fuel only transactions. Dependant on
the annual volume of fuel purchased a rebate will be applied retrospectively to
reduce the overall cost to the Council. This option requires strict management
controls to be in place to ensure compliance and spend. In order to achieve a
similar pricing structure when compared to the expected unit prices achieved
under from bulk fuel framework the Council will be required to use a large
volume of fuel (a likely outcome) and pay by direct debit, which will increase
cash flow pressures, when compared to the bulk fuel framework that operates
on a credit basis.
Page 15

Although this option carries a number of operational and compliance risks, as
described above, it may provide some flexibility going forward because of the
Council’s CN28 programme of change. Unlike the bulk fuel framework, the
Council is not required to maintain the local depot infrastructure for vehicle
fuelling which does incur additional overhead costs. Given that the direct
provision of fleet may change as new models of service delivery changes
because of CN28 these costs may start to become disproportionately high.
The table in section 2.5 helps show how proportionate the financial and
operational risk associated with this option will be for the main service users
given the current usage profile.
At this stage, this option is not considered to be the preferred route to market.
However, this option should remain ‘under review’ as the demand for direct
fuel provision may change as an outcome of the CN28 programme.
Option 4 – No Action Taken
The Council would still require the provision of Automotive Fuel and Oil
therefore individuals would need to either purchase via high street forecourts
which would be both expensive and administratively burdensome or be
obliged to operate under any supplier’s standard terms and conditions and
price banding which would not provide best value. In addition, this would be
non-compliant with the Councils procurement rules and UK Procurement
Legislation as the service value dictates that a full, robust and complaint
process would be required.
2.16 After evaluation, the recommended option would be to market test the
provision of the service using the established CCS Framework Agreement
(option 2) and award an initial two-year contract. This would provide a period
for continuity of service provision as the Council continues to implement the
CN28 vision and ensure that new commercial entities have a period of stability
and to assess their individual requirements prior to seeking their own
competitive procurement process.
2.17 This option also balances the need to deliver a value for money service
alongside managing the procurement and commercial risks that exist with
option 1, and provides stronger financial controls when compared to option 3.
3.

Other options considered in making recommendations

3.1 We can establish our own contract for the purchase of fuel with a supplier, but
this has been rejected because the framework option provides a value for
money arrangement due to the economies of scale in the volume of fuel being
bought through the framework, which is something as an individual authority,
we would not be able to compete with, in terms of securing a competitive
price.
4.

Consideration of Risk

4.1 There are number of risks associated with this procurement, they are as
follows:
4.2 Risk
4.3 Impact
4.4 Mitigation
4.5 Non-compliant status
4.6 No compliant with 4.7 Access of CCS framework
of procurement
Council andPage
UK 16
and Mini competition meet the

legislation

Councils requirements

4.8 Non-availability of the
4.9 Market rates (pump
4.11
CCS open framework price) charged and
potential to be noncompliant with
Council and UK
legislation
4.10
4.12 The Council requires
4.14 Potential cost
4.15
a reduction in volume increases
as a result of
transformation
4.13
4.16 Non-delivery of fuel4.17 Potential service 4.18
disruption

Access an alternative open
framework for supply of liquid
fuels or move to fuel cards in
the interim

The framework will allow for
fluctuations in volume with
small minimum deliveries

CCS Contract management
processes will ensure
corrective and timely action is
taken to avoid service
disruption

4.19
5.

Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for
money/VAT)

5.1 The value of this decision is up to £9.600m over a total potential 4-year period
(2+1+1 contract) which equates to £2.4m per annum. The value of this
decision is based on the current price of Diesel with ESPO at the time of
writing.
5.2 As outlined in the main body if this report, total spent on diesel, gad oil and
Adblue in 2021/22 was £1.632m however with the increase in fuel prices this
is expected to rise to £2.310m in 2022/23 and onwards. The price of diesel is
volatile therefore these figures are only estimates and will change through the
contract period.
5.3 Fuel is funded from existing MTFP budgets across NCC with the majority
being contained within Resident Services. A financial pressure however is
expected as existing budgets do not contain sufficient funding for the cost of
inflation that fuel is experiencing. This pressure is expected to be in the region
of £0.450m in 22/23 and is subject to further future price increases. The
increased unbudgeted expenditure has been declared as a forecast
overspend within the Residents period 2 forecast and it will also form part of
the 23/24+ MTFP budget setting process if permanent mitigation cannot be
found elsewhere.
5.4 The service should proactively seek mitigation for any overspends to ensure
any finance pressure is minimised and managed as best as possible.
5.5 The use of a CCS frame will give access to market competitive prices
throughout the purchasing period through the aggregated purchasing power
of the awarding framework. This will aim to minimise current and future
financial pressures.
Phil Gretton – Strategic Finance Business Partner 29/06/2022
Page 17

6.

Legal colleague comments
There are no significant legal issues arising from this proposal. The running of a
mini-competition through a compliant framework such as the CCS one being
suggested will allow the Council to achieve Best Value.
Naomi Vass – Team Leader, Contracts and Commercial Team 30/6/2022

7.

Other relevant comments
Procurement comments
The recommendation and considerations have been prepared in collaboration
with procurement. Procurement will support the development of all tender
documentation and tendering.
Holly Fisher, Lead Procurement Officer, 23 June 2022

8.

Crime and Disorder Implications (If Applicable)

8.1 Not applicable
9.

Social value considerations (If Applicable)

9.1 Despite the ongoing electrification of Nottingham City Council’s fleet, diesel is
still essential for running 49% of our fleet including refuse collection vehicles,
sweepers minibuses and meals at home vehicles. Keeping these vehicles on
the road and able to carry out their respective tasks, is vitally important. It
would be detrimental to the community in many ways if these services were
interrupted.
10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable)
10.1 Not applicable
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
11.1 An EIA is not required because delivery of fuel is an internal process which
does not affect the public so there will be no negative or positive effect on any
particular group of people.
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA)
12.1 A DPIA is not required because personal information is not obtained in the
delivery of fuel as an internal process.
13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA)
13.1 A CIA is not required because the decision is to replace one procurement
framework with another. Carbon impact on vehicles is assessed in other
reports related to vehicle procurement and decarbonisation.
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including
published documents or confidential or exempt information)
14.1 None

Page 18

15. Published documents referred to in this report
15.1 None

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
5
Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee
– 12 Item
July 2022
Subject:

Supply and delivery of frozen food, grocery and fresh meat

Corporate Director:

Frank Jordan - Resident Services

Portfolio Holder:

Cheryl Barnard - Children, Young People and Schools

Report author and
contact details:

Thomas Ali, Food Development Officer
Thomas.Ali@Nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Other colleagues who
have provided input:
Key Decision
Yes
No
Subject to call-in
Reasons:
Expenditure
Income
Savings of £750,000 or more
taking account of the overall impact of the decision
Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more
wards in the City
Type of expenditure:
Revenue
Capital

Yes

No

Revenue
Yes

Capital
No

Total value of the decision: £6,000,000
Wards affected: All Wards
Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 14 June 2022
Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:
Clean and Connected Communities
Keeping Nottingham Working
Carbon Neutral by 2028
Safer Nottingham
Child-Friendly Nottingham
Healthy and Inclusive
Keeping Nottingham Moving
Improve the City Centre
Better Housing
Financial Stability
Serving People Well
Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):
We have 73 sites split between schools, catering outlets and care homes which all require frozen
food or grocery products. The previous contract has been running for 4 years. This applies to
schools, catering outlets and care homes, covering all wards in city.
Also the contract to cover fresh meat supply to all sites. This expires in January 2023 having
previously been running for 3 years.
Exempt information: None.
Recommendations:
1 To approve the undertaking of a full tender to procure a contract for the supply of frozen food
and groceries for up to a 4-year period (2+1+1 years), with a maximum cost of £5,000,000.
2

To approve the undertaking of a full tender to procure a contract for the supply of fresh meat
for up to 4 years (2+1+1 years), with maximum cost of £1,000,000.

3

To delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Resident Services to award the contracts to
the successful bidders.
Page 21

1.

Reasons for recommendations

1.1 The current contract for the supply of frozen food and groceries expires on
01/11/2022 and fresh meat expires January 2023. New contracts need to be
put in place and therefore a competitive tender process will ensure that both
quality of product and value for money for all sites is obtained.
1.2 This is a contract for supplies and is subject to the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 which requires the City Council to undertake a competitive
tender process to award the contract.
1.3 The rationale for the decision is that all this expenditure will be covered by the
charges for school meals, which is either through paid meals for the Free
School Meals budget or income from the Council operated catering outlets.
2.

Background (including outcomes of consultation)

2.1 Nottingham City Catering has 73 sites split between schools, catering outlets
and care homes which all require frozen & grocery products. The previous
contract has been running for 4 years and we will be without a contracted
supplier in November 2022 unless we go back to the market to tender. We are
looking to have a tender for all products to provide a cost effective, quality and
stable supply chain in place to cover the next 4-year period. This also applies
to the fresh meat contract which expires in January 2023 and Nottingham
Catering is looking to go out to tender to cover a maximum of 4 years.
2.2 For fresh meat we look to use local supplies with a high quality for British only
produce
3.

Other options considered in making recommendations

3.1 If we were to do nothing this would leave Nottingham City Council at risk of no
longer receiving products required to produce school meals. This option has
been rejected as Nottingham City Council needs a supplier to provide food to
schools, catering outlets and care homes to ensure that services continue to
be provided to citizens.
4.

Consideration of Risk

4.1 The risk of not having a contact in place would mean costs would not be held
and prices fluctuate. The contract provides terms for suppliers to adhere to in
both cost, quality and supply expectations.
5.

Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for
money/VAT)

5.1 This decision seeks approval to go out to tender for both the supply of frozen
grocery food provisions and for the supply of fresh meat for Nottingham
Catering service, for use in schools and commercial catering sites.
5.2 The frozen food and groceries contract will be for 2 years with an optional
1+1-year extension. The expected spend for this decision over the four-year
period is circa £5m although this could vary dependant on contract renewals.
Page 22

Nottingham Catering spends approximately £1.25m per annum on frozen and
grocery food provisions
5.3 The fresh meat contract will be for 2 years with an optional 1+1 extension.
The expected spend over the 4-year period is up to £1m. Nottingham Catering
spend approximately £0.250m per annum on fresh meat supplies.
5.4 Funding for both of these contracts are contained within existing budgets in
Nottingham Catering. Satisfactory procurement of this contract, in adherence
to the Council’s procurement procedure, will help to ensure that Nottingham
Catering is able to deliver on its MTFP position and ensure an effective and
efficient supply chain.
5.5 The current wider economic conditions could also have a significant
cost/supply implication, therefore having a strong contractual arrangement in
place should help to mitigate some of these fluctuations and ensure that
Nottingham Catering is able to meet its commercial obligations.
5.6 Both contracts will need to be reviewed after the initial 2-year period to ensure
prices remain competitive and provide value for money, and that the contract
is still fit for purpose for the service.
Phil Gretton, Strategic Finance Business Partner – 27/06/2022
6.

Legal colleague comments

6.1 The Council is given the power to provide catering services under a variety of
legislation, including the Education Act 1996 for school catering, Civic
Restaurants Act 1947 for its own catering outlets, and the Local Authorities
(Goods and Services) Act 1970 where working with other public bodies.
6.2 This report is requesting authority to conduct a tender process to appoint a
contractor for (1) the supply of frozen and grocery foods; and (2) the supply of
fresh meat following the expiry of the current contracts. There are no legal
concerns arising from this recommendation subject to compliance at all times
with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and Public Contracts Regulations
2015.
Naomi Vass – Team Leader, Contracts and Commercial Team 29/6/22
7.

Other relevant comments

7.1 Procurement comments
7.2 Procurement will support in sourcing both the Supply of Fresh Meat and
Frozen and Grocery Food Provisions replacement contracts by utilising the
open procedure. Due to the value, this contract opportunity will be advertised
using Contracts Finder, Find a Tender Service and on Due North.
7.3 The open procedure enables the wider marketplace to engage with the
opportunity, encouraging competitive tension and innovative solutions,
procurement will support in the development of the requirement and the
assessment criteria.
Holly Fisher, Lead Procurement Officer, 23 June 2022
Page 23

8.

Crime and Disorder Implications (If Applicable)

8.1 N/A
9.

Social value considerations (If Applicable)

9.1 Procuring best quality provisions to provide a nutritious and balanced diet to
the City’s schoolchildren, Residential Unit users and staff. The tender will be
open to a wide range of suppliers including the local suppliers for
consideration. Where possible this will allow better flexibility and the
opportunity to reduce food mileage and keeping transport costs lower.
10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable)
10.1 Not applicable
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
11.1 An EIA is not required because no Equality issue will result as part of this
decision. This is a process to produce products for the service and does not
involve amending any current policies
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA)
12.1 A DPIA is not required because there are no Data protection impact from this
decision to tender as the data shared is based on products and prices only
and not specific to individual users or sharing of protected data.
13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA)
13.1 A CIA is not required because the tender will not alter the carbon impact for
the Catering service. These products are required to run the service and
transport miles have been calculated in any current assessments.
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including
published documents or confidential or exempt information)
14.1 None.
15. Published documents referred to in this report
15.1 None.

Page 24

Agenda
6
Commissioning and Procurement Executive Committee
– 12 Item
July 2022
Subject:

Commissioning of substance misuse treatment and recovery services
for Nottingham

Corporate Director/
Director:

Catherine Underwood, Corporate Director for People
Lucy Hubber, Director of Public Health

Portfolio Holder(s):

Cllr Linda Woodings (Adults and Health)

Report author and
contact details:

Helen Johnston, Consultant in Public Health
helen.johnston@nottinghamcity.gov.uk

Other colleagues who
have provided input:

Steve Oakley, Head of Contracting and Procurement
Nancy Cordy, Senior Public Health Strategy & Service Improvement
Manager
Key Decision
Yes
No
Subject to call-in
Yes
No
Reasons:
Expenditure
Income
Savings of £750,000 or more
Revenue
Capital
taking account of the overall impact of the decision
Significant impact on communities in two or more wards in the City
Yes
No
Type of expenditure:
Revenue
Capital
If Capital, provide the date considered by Capital Board
Date:
Total value of the decision: £64,619,145
Wards affected: City-wide
Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 22 June 2022
Relevant Council Plan Key Outcome:
Clean and Connected Communities
Keeping Nottingham Working
Carbon Neutral by 2028
Safer Nottingham
Child-Friendly Nottingham
Healthy and Inclusive
Keeping Nottingham Moving
Improve the City Centre
Better Housing
Financial Stability
Serving People Well
Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):
Nottingham’s alcohol and drug treatment and recovery system includes an integrated treatment
and recovery service for adults, a criminal justice pathway, and services for children and young
people and families impacted by substance misuse. The substance misuse treatment and
recovery services in Nottingham city need to be re-commissioned, with new contracts to be let
from 1 July 2023.
The Supplemental Grant has been allocated to Nottingham City to support improvements in the
quality and capacity of drug and alcohol treatment 2022/23 to 2024/25. Along with other ringfenced grant funding and partner funding, this marks a step change in investment in substance
misuse services, for consideration alongside the commissioning review to ensure Nottingham
has sufficient high-quality service provision.
This paper requests the approvals for the re-commissioning of substance misuse treatment and
recovery services in Nottingham from July 2023, and the receipt/spend of Supplemental grant.
Exempt information: None
Page 25

Recommendations:
1 Approve the receipt of up to £2, 899,440 from the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner
as a partner contribution to substance misuse.
2

Approve the receipt of the full allocation for Nottingham of the Supplemental Substance
Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant (including the Inpatient Detoxification grant line) from
the Office of Health Improvement & Disparities to 31 March 2025 (total indicative value of
£7,064,863), paying attention to grant conditions.

3 Approve the spend of £1,829,466 on substance misuse services and activity to 30 June 2023
as set out in Appendix A
4 Approve the spend of £291,177 of the Inpatient Detoxification Grant through a consortium
procurement of additional inpatient detox beds within the Midlands to 31 March 2025.
5 Delegate responsibility to Director of Public Health to agree the service model for the
commissioning of substance misuse services against the entire budget available, through
applying the insight and commissioning recommendations developed within the strategic
commissioning review and in consultation with the Portfolio Holder.
6 Approve undertaking a procurement process for the following services (Appendix B):
-

7

Integrated drug and alcohol treatment and recovery services for adults
Drug and alcohol treatment and recovery services for people in the criminal justice system
Integrated drug and alcohol treatment and recovery services for children and young
people
Family support service for those impacted by substance misuse
Harm reduction service including specialist needle exchange & sexual health
Shared Care in primary care

Approve the spend of ring-fenced Public Health Grant, ring-fenced substance misuse grants,
and partner funding up to a total value of £62,498,502 on substance misuse services for
Nottingham for 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2032, with funding contributions detailed in Appendix
C.

1.

Reasons for recommendations

1.1 Substance misuse treatment and recovery services are funded primarily
through the Public Health Grant. Recommendation 1 is the receipt of funding
from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner as a funding partner,
and Recommendation 2 to receipt the nationally-allocated Supplemental
Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery Grant. Together these make up the
budget for substance misuse services in the scope of this paper.
1.2 All of the funding for substance misuse services commissioned by Nottingham
City Council sits either under ring-fenced grant conditions (Public Health
Grant, Supplemental Grant) or partnership agreements, for which the Director
of Public Health is accountable, and the resource must be stewarded in line
with these conditions. The Director of Public Health is the appropriate
designate for approving the commissioning model in line with clinical
governance standards to meet population needs (recommendation 6).
1.3 New substance misuse treatment and recovery service contracts need to be
let from 1st July 2023. Recommendation 3 refers to spend approvals in the
Page
26 (to 30th June 2023) set out in
time period ahead of the new service
model

appendix A. Spend approval is also being sought for the 3-year inpatient
detox grant to 31 March 2025 (recommendation 4).
1.4 A commissioning review of substance misuse services in Nottingham is
underway. The procurement exercise for new services needs to be completed
in autumn 2022, to allow for service mobilisation in 2023. Recommendations
5-6 refer to the approvals for the re-commissioning of these services. Spend
approval is being sought (recommendation 7) for commissioned services
under 5+2+2 year contracts against a 9-year budget (Appendix C).
1.5 The commissioned services for adults, children, families, the criminal justice
pathway, and the harm reduction service will be procured such that additional
substance misuse treatment activity grant-funded by the Office of Health
Improvement and Disparities is provided by the awarded treatment service
provider, as this is not standalone activity.
2.

Background (including outcomes of consultation)

2.1 Local authorities, must, under the conditions of the Public Health Grant: ‘have
regard to the need to improve the take up of, and outcomes from, its drug and
alcohol misuse treatment services, based on an assessment of local need and
a plan which has been developed with local health and criminal justice
partners’. The ringfenced Public Health Grant for Local Authorities is allocated
by the Department of Health and Social Care on an annual basis. The
contribution of the Nottingham Public Health grant towards substance misuse
services has been calculated for 9 years (Appendix C).
2.2 A strategic commissioning review of substance misuse services and the wider
system has been designed to understand the current service landscape,
needs including emerging trends, and the perspective of people with lived
experience. This includes a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment chapter,
service reviews and a programme of stakeholder engagement. The review will
inform the development of a commissioning model for the highest quality and
value treatment and recovery services, reflecting effective pathways with other
key services including for mental health and severe multiple disadvantage,
meeting the needs of our diverse population, and building on existing good
practice. There is guidance for Directors of Public Health on discharging their
responsibilities for drug and alcohol services, specifically on the quality
(clinical) governance arrangements that must be in place equivalent to NHS
standards.
2.3 The scope for the re-procurement of substance misuse services comprises
the following services and all associated prescribing costs:
 Integrated adult’s substance misuse services for alcohol and drugs:
covering Tier 2, Tier 3 Pharmacological and clinical treatment service and
Psychosocial, Care Coordination and Recovery Support Service including
community rehabilitation;
 Comprehensive Drugs and Alcohol Service for Children and Young People;
 Dedicated drug and alcohol family and carer support (impacted by service);
 Criminal Justice service including arrangements with Nottingham City
Police, Probation and CDP for tackling substance-related offending;
 Shared Care in General Practice;
 Harm Reduction Service (including sexual health) & Community Needle
Exchange.
Page 27

The commissioning timeline has been set out in Appendix D.
2.4 The Harm Reduction Service (including sexual health) is one of the service
areas in scope for re-commissioning. A strategic sexual health commissioning
review is in progress with a focus on the integrated sexual health services in
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire. Learning is being shared across the
commissioning reviews.
2.5 There are other substance misuse contracts which fall outside of this
commissioning exercise, including supervised consumption in pharmacies, the
inpatient detoxification provision (that the grant funded activity is additional to)
and the hospital alcohol liaison team. The inter-relationship of the substance
misuse services that fall outside of the scope of the commissioning review is
being considered within the commissioning review to inform the service
model.
2.6 The national ‘From Harm to Hope’ 10 Year Drugs plan was published by the
government in autumn 2021, building forward from the Dame Carol Black
Review. The plan sets out an emphasis on breaking drug supply chains,
developing a world-class treatment and recovery system, and reducing the
demand for recreational drugs. Ambitious trajectories have been set on
increased numbers in treatment, and the plan includes requirements for local
areas to develop multi-organisational partnership boards to help coordinate
and drive change, with new Commissioning Quality Standards. The
Commissioning Quality Standards are expected to be published at the end of
June 2022. These will inform the final stage of the local review in July and
August, and be reflected in the specifications as they are developed for
Nottingham.
2.7 The Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant,
including an Inpatient Detoxification grant line, has been allocated to local
authorities to improve the capacity and quality of local substance misuse
services as part of the delivery of ‘From Harm to Hope’. The Office of Health
Improvement and Disparities have confirmed the 2022/23 allocation for the
Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery grant, and
provided indicative sums for the following years, noting that future years are
subject to annual approval by the Treasury. The allocation for Nottingham City
is:
Grant allocations
Supplemental
substance misuse
treatment &
recovery grant
Inpatient
detoxification grant
TOTAL

22/23
Confirmed
£1,167,648

23/24
Indicative
£1,913,178

24/25
Indicative
£3,692,860

TOTAL

£97,059

£97,059

£97,059

£291,177

£1,264,707

£2,010,237

£3,789,919

£7,064,863

£6,773,686

2.8 The Director of Public Health was advised of the Supplemental Grant
allocations in April 2022, and was required to submit a 3 year outline plan and
a detailed plan for 22/23 in May 2022. This plan set out local ambitions to
increase numbers in treatment and accessing residential rehabilitation and
was completed with review by the Substance Misuse Strategic Oversight
partnership. The Office of Health Improvement and Disparities have approved
Page 28

the plan and invited the Director of Public Health to sign a Memorandum of
Understanding for the grant.
2.9 The Supplemental Grant supersedes the Universal Drug Treatment Grant that
was awarded to Nottingham in 2021/22 by Public Health England and extends
to June 2022. The activity in the Universal Grant programme was approved as
a Delegated Decision (4513), and had a focus on the criminal justice pathway
including staffing in custody suites and assertive outreach. Much of the
activity identified for 22/23 within the Supplemental Grant is a continuation of
the activity commenced under the Universal Grant in 21/22.
2.10 The Public Health grant funded elements have been calculated maintaining
the current investment in substance misuse services through to June 2032,
and applying a 2% uplift on this due to anticipated Agenda for Change
increments on staffing costs. The Public Health Grant elements are subject to
change as part of ongoing review of the grant and its use across all population
health areas, benchmarking with other areas. An assessment will be needed
on additional activity and substance misuse service provision for investment
within the lifetime of these contracts. This work will commence as contracts
are awarded, anticipating the end dates of the additional grant funding, and in
line with national policy and local strategic developments.
3.

Other options considered in making recommendations

3.1 The current contracts have been aligned such that they cease on 30 June
2023. Without re-commissioning, there would be no commissioned services
and a lack of provision, with Nottingham City Council neglecting the duty to
ensure these services.
3.2 Under a ‘do nothing’ option’ on the Supplemental Substance Misuse
Treatment & Recovery Grant, there would be no receipt of the grant. This
would put Nottingham at significant disadvantage for the delivery of From
Harm to Hope with a lack of benefit for Nottingham residents.
4.

Consideration of Risk

4.1 This is a complicated commissioning exercise due to the scale and
interdependencies of the various treatment and recovery services, a tight
timeline, and the overlap with ring-fenced grant funding. There are numerous
posts within the incumbent providers funded through the recent grant
programmes including the Universal Drug Treatment grant, the Individual
Placement Support grant, and the Rough Sleeper Drug & Alcohol Treatment
grant set within contract variations. This activity will need to be picked up by
the awarded treatment providers, and the commissioned services will need a
suitable model of contract to enable the seamless continuation of existing
grant programmes, and the inclusion of future grant programmes. Clauses will
need to be included to allow for abrupt changes in national funding.
4.2 The final Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner contributions to the
services in Nottingham have not been formally confirmed. They are budgeted
within this as maintaining current contributions across the nine years
(appendix C) and approval is sought to receive and spend up to that value,
under the agreed commissioning model.
4.3 The Supplemental Substance Misuse and Inpatient Detoxification Grants are
ring-fenced grants with grant conditions set by the Office of Health
Page 29
Improvement and Disparities. As set out in the drug strategy and the Public

Health Grant (PHG) agreement letter, eligibility for this additional grant funding
will be dependent on maintaining existing local council (2020/21) investment
in drug and alcohol treatment. The use of the Public Health Grant for
substance misuse services at maintained levels has been written into the
Medium Term Financial Plan.
4.4 The ringfenced grant funding runs to March 2025, tapering upwards with the
additional £3.7m worth activity in 2024/2025, but no guarantee of external
funding beyond that. Nottingham will need to establish a partnership
programme to review the effectiveness of the additional provision that is
funded, to inform the ongoing use of the Public Health Grant and partner
funding contributions for substance misuse services on an impactful and
sustainable footing.
5.

Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for
money/VAT)

5.1 This decision seeks approval to receive and spend grant funding in relation to
the recommissioning of substance misuse treatment and recovery services
covering 2022/23 to 2032/33. The total value of this decision is £64.619m and
this is broken down by funding source in the table below:
5.2 Funding summary for Substance Misuse services
Financial Year £m
Funding

Funding
Source

Supplemental
Substance
Misuse
Treatment and
Recovery Grant

202223

202324

202425

New
Grant
from
OHID

1.168

1.913

3.693

6.774

Impatient
Detoxification
Grant

New
Grant
from
OHID

0.097

0.097

0.097

0.291

Office of the
Police & Crime
Commissioner

Indicative,
not
confirmed

0.242

0.322

Public Health
Grant - Needle
Exchange
Public Health
Grant - Shared
Care
Public Health
Grant
TOTAL
AMOUNT OF
DECISION

Existing
Public
Health
Grant
Existing
Public
Health
Grant
Existing
Public
Health
Grant

202526

0.322

202627

0.322

202728

0.322

202829

0.322

202930

0.322

203031

0.322

203132

0.322

203233

0.081

TOTAL

2.899

0.124

0.041

0.166

0.059

0.035

0.094

1.448

4.142

5.639

5.758

5.880

6.004

6.131

6.260

6.391

6.525

1.666

54.395

6.470

9.751

6.080

6.202

6.326

6.453

6.582

6.713

6.848

1.746

64.619

5.3 Income
5.3.1 Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant and
Impatient Detoxification Grant - The Office for Health Improvement &
Disparities
This decision seeks approval to receive funding from the Office for Health
Improvement & Disparities to support improvement in the quality and capacity
Page
30
of drug and alcohol treatment between
2022/23
to 2024/25.

The total value of the grant funding is £7.065m.
Grant allocations
Supplemental Substance
Misuse Treatment &
Recovery grant

2022/23 £m 2023/24 £m 2024/25 £m TOTAL
Confirmed Indicative
Indicative
£m
1.168
1.913
3.693
6.774

Inpatient detoxification
Grant

0.097

0.097

0.097

0.291

TOTAL

1.265

2.010

3.790

7.065

5.4 Eligibility for this funding in future years is dependent on maintaining the
existing (2022/23) investment from the main Public Health Grant. Funding
must be spent by 31 March 2025 and Nottingham City Council should manage
receipt of this funding in line with the schedule. Funding needs to be claimed
in a timely manner and accounted for correctly across the respective financial
years. Funding should be spent in accordance with any grant terms and
conditions.
5.5 The funding is based on the agreed allocation for 2022/23, future years
funding values are indicative and could change, so these remain a risk. If the
future year’s allocations do change, further approval will be needed via the
appropriate approval route. If this funding does not materialise as profiled,
then a commensurate reduction in contracts/services will be needed to ensure
that no financial pressure arises as a result of this decision.
5.6 Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner - partner contribution
5.6.1 This decision seeks approval to receive funding from the Office of the Police &
Crime Commissioner as a partner contribution. Although no funding values
have been formally confirmed at the time of writing, indications are that the
funding will continue at the same level as the current partnership arrangement
with Public Health.
5.6.2 The value, based on the current annual contribution, is a total £2.899m up to
2032/33. This funding remains a financial risk until confirmed, if this funding
does not materialise then a commensurate reduction in contracts/services will
need to be made to ensure that no financial pressure arises as a result of this
decision.
5.7 Expenditure
5.7.1 This decision seeks approval for the total spend against funding received of
£64.619m and this is broken down as:
1. £1.829m on substance misuse services and activity to 30 June 2023 as set
out in Appendix A in the report;
2. £0.291m of the Inpatient Detoxification Grant through a consortium
procurement of additional inpatient detox beds within the Midlands to 31
March 202;
3. To spend the ring-fenced Public Health Grant (£54.395m), balance of ringPage
31 Treatment and Recovery Grant not
fenced Supplemental Substance
Misuse

reflected in no1 above (£5.204m), and partner funding (£2.899m) up to a total
value of £62.499m on substance misuse services for Nottingham during the
period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2032. All spend should meet public health
objectives and be eligible in full from the grant, aligning to grant conditions.

5.7.2 It is assumed that the Public Health funding (main grant) remains at a level
that can sustainably support the cost of this decision in future years. If this
funding does not materialise as expected, then a commensurate reduction in
contracts/services will need to be made to ensure that no financial pressure
arises as a result of this decision, whilst ensuring that public health outcomes
are achieved by the reprioritisation of available funding.
5.8 A compliant procurement process will be undertaken which will enable
services to be established that are fit for purpose and deliver value for money
services which meet the needs of the citizens in Nottingham. Exit strategies
should be built into contracts to ensure that no financial pressure arises
should funding be reduced in future years or where funding is indicative and
doesn’t materialise as planned.
5.9 It is essential that robust contract monitoring and management is maintained
throughout the period that any contracts are awarded, regularly reviewing
performance/KPI’s and ensuring the contracts are fit for purpose and continue
to achieve value for money throughout the commissioning period.
5.10 All contracts will need to be managed in accordance with internal NCC finance
and governance arrangements.
5.11 Any changes to the proposals outlined in this decision would require
subsequent approval via the appropriate approval route.
Tracey Moore, Commercial Business Partner (Public Health) & Hayley Mason
Strategic Finance Business Partner (Adults and Public Health)
4 July 2022
6.

Legal colleague comments

6.1 The recommendations in this report seek to approve the receipt and onward
allocation of funding with respect to substance misuse treatment and recovery
services in Nottingham.
6.2 For the main part, the funding will be used for the commissioning of new
services and a compliant procurement process will be undertaken to secure
delivery.
6.3 The remainder of the funding will be used to support contract extensions and
variations to ensure that continued service delivery is in place whilst the
procurement exercise is undertaken. These proposals are deemed to be
permissible in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and
therefore compliant with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Should any
of the funding be used for other activities outside of these approved routes, it
should only be done in accordance with the Council’s constitutional
requirements and where appropriate further advice should be sought to
assess should spend.
6.4 The Council must ensure that it complies with any conditions of the funding
32 obligations under the contracts it
including where applicable passing Page
on such

enters into for service delivery including monitoring and reporting
requirements.
6.5 Legal service will support as required alongside Procurement colleagues for
the provision of these services.
Dionne Screaton, Senior Solicitor, Contracts and Commercial, 1 st July 2022.
7.

Other relevant comments

7.1 Procurement colleague comments
This report relates to the receipt and expenditure of funding for the delivery of
substance misuse treatment and recovery services in Nottingham, including receipt
of Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant from the Office
of Health Improvement & Disparities. It seeks approvals for the re-commissioning
of substance misuse treatment and recovery services from July 2023, and for
interim contract awards and variations to extend existing contracted provision while
the commissioning and procurement process is completed.
The Procurement Team will support the re-commissioning of services through
undertaking a compliant procurement process for the award of contracts, in
accordance with the requirements of the UK Procurement Regulations and the
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (Article 18 of the Constitution). An appropriate
procurement and contracting approach will be adopted to allow for future additional
grant funded activity to be delivered in a seamless way with existing provision, and
to be sourced compliantly.
In relation to the proposed interim contract awards and variations to March 2023
outlined at Appendix A, the Procurement Team has been consulted and has
advised on compliance and best value. The proposed contract variations are
deemed permissible in accordance with Article 18.99 of the Contract Procedure
Rules or are provided for under an existing contract extension provision and will
allow for continuity of provision while the re-commissioning process is completed.
Any other allocations of this grant funding by the Director of Public Health on
enabling activity should be made in line with the grant conditions and compliant
with the Council’s Constitution and the UK Procurement Regulations where
applicable. The Procurement Team will support with this as needed.
Jo Pettifor, Category Manager – Strategy & People, 23rd June 2022
8.

Crime and Disorder Implications

8.1 Drugs and alcohol are a major driver of crime and disorder. Ensuring sufficient
accessible treatment and recovery services for substance misuse is a
fundamental aspect of addressing this nationally and locally.
9.

Social value considerations

9.1 High quality substance misuse services add social value through improving
the outcomes for people affected by substance misuse and their wider
families and communities. The Procurement Strategy objectives for promoting
social value and maximising economic, social and environmental benefits will
be applied here, including considering how categories of supplies are
structured within lots to ensure accessibility for local or smaller organisations.
Page 33

10. Regard to the NHS Constitution (If Applicable)
10.1 Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group are key partners
in the Substance Misuse Strategic Oversight Group, the multiagency advisory
group for the system model of substance misuse services. Though the CCG are
not a co-funder of these services the proposals submitted for the Supplemental
Grant were prepared in consultation.
11. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment will be completed on the approved
commissioning model, and due regard with be given to any implications
identified within it.
12. Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA)
12.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessment will be completed on the approved
commissioning model, and due regard with be given to any implications identified
within it.
13. Carbon Impact Assessment (CIA)
13.1 A Carbon Impact Assessment will be completed on the approved
commissioning model, and due regard will be given to any implications
identified within it.
14. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including
published documents or confidential or exempt information)
None.
15. Published documents referred to in this report
Dame Carol Black (2021) Independent Review of Drugs
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/independent-review-of-drugs-by-professordame-carol-black
HM Government (2021) From Harm to Hope Drugs Plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-planto-cut-crime-and-save-lives
Public Health England (2015) Quality governance guidance for local authority
commissioners of alcohol and drug services
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmen
t_data/file/669622/Alcohol_and_drug_treatment__quality_governance_guidance.pdf

Page 34

Appendix A: Income and expenditure for substance misuse services
until 30 June 2023 for which approval is being sought
Funding
Source

Supplemental
Substance
Misuse
Treatment
and Recovery
Grant
(SSMTR)

Mechanism for
expenditure

Activity to be funded

Contract variations –
to ‘supplement’
existing core
services
(compliant with
contract procedure
regulation 18.99)
New provision to be
procured
Various – as
detailed in plans
submitted to and
approved by OHID

Integrated adults
substance misuse
services (adults) –
Nottingham Recovery
Network – Framework
Criminal justice pathway
– Clean Slate –
Framework
Children, young people &
families service – Jigsaw
- CGL
18-25yrs substance
misuse service
Enabling activity –
including NCC staffing

Value of
spend
approval
required
£871,389

£328,268

£80,096

£116,508
(up to)
£173,682
(up to)

SSMTR grant TOTAL £1,569,943

Public Health
Grant

Specialist needle
exchange and sexual
health service – Health
Shop – Nottinghamshire
Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust
Shared Care – GPs
(various)

£165,523

Contract extension –
within existing
contract extension
provisions
Contract extension –
£94,000
permissible under
contract procedure
regulation 18.99
Public Health grant TOTAL £259,523
TOTAL £1,829,466

Page 35

Appendix B: Services to be procured and contracted for delivery from 1
July 2023 for a maximum of 9 years (5+2+2)
Services in-scope for current commissioning review:









Integrated adults substance misuse services for alcohol and drugs:
covering Tier 2, Tier 3 Pharmacological and clinical treatment service
and Psychosocial, Care Coordination and Recovery Support Service
including community rehabilitation
Comprehensive Drugs and Alcohol Service for Children and Young
People
Dedicated drug and alcohol family and carer support (impacted by
service)
Criminal Justice service including arrangements with Nottingham City
Police, Probation and CDP for tackling substance-related offending
Shared Care in General Practice
Harm Reduction Service (including sexual health) & Community Needle
Exchange
Additional prescribing activity

TOTAL COMMISSIONING ENVELOPE = £62,498,502

Appendix C: Breakdown of total commissioning envelope by financial
year and income stream (1 July 23 – 30 June 32)
23/24*
SSMTR £1,510,883
OPCC
£241,620
PH
£4,141,662
grant
TOTAL £5,894,165

24/25
25/26
26/27
27/28
£3,692,860
£322,160
£322,160
£322,160
£322,160
£5,639,103 £5,758,328 £5,879,938 £6,003,980

28/29
SSMTR
OPCC
£322,160
PH
£6,130,503
grant
TOTAL £6,452,663

29/30

£9,654,123 £6,080,488 £6,202,098 £6,326,140
30/31

31/32

32/33**

£322,160
£322,160
£322,160
£80,540
£6,259,556 £6,391,190 £6,525,457 £1,665,602
£6,581,716 £6,713,350 £6,847,617 £1,746,142

*Q2-Q4 only **Q1 only

Page 36

Appendix D: Commissioning Timeline
Development and Engagement
Consultation and engagement stage 1:

May 22 - July 22

Development of preferred model

July 22

Consultation and engagement stage 2

July 22 - August 22

Plan
Strategic service review

May 22 - July 22

Impact Assessments

August 22

Procurement (Indicative timeline)
Market development

July 22 - September 22

Tendering and Evaluation

September 22 – January 23

Anticipated award date

January 23

Mobilisation period

February 23 - June 23

Contract commencement

July 23

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

